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Municipal Association of Victoria

Guide to the financial statements

Components of the financial report

The financial report contains three main sections:

• financial statements

• notes to the financial statements

• statements by the directors and auditor.

The financial statements consist of four main statements – 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial 
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flows.

The notes to the financial statements detail the Association’s 
accounting policies and set out the detailed values that are 
carried into the financial statements.

The statements by directors and auditor provide the views of 
the directors of the MAV and the independent auditor on the 
financial report.

Financial statements

1  Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows:

• the MAV’s revenue from its various activities

• expenses incurred in running the MAV and its business 
activities.

These expenses relate only to the business operations 
and do not include costs associated with the purchase of 
assets. The expense item ‘depreciation’ spreads the cost 
of the assets over the estimated life of the assets. The most 
important figure is the surplus/deficit for the year. A surplus 
means that revenues were greater than expenses and a 
deficit means expenses were greater than revenue.

2  Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position shows the assets the 
Association owns and the liabilities it owes at 30 June. 
The Statement of Financial Position separates the assets 
and liabilities into current and non-current. Current means 
those assets or liabilities that will be either collected or that 
fall due within the next 12 months.

The components of the Statement of Financial Position are:

2.1  Current and non-current assets

Cash assets include cash held in the bank, petty cash, 
cash deposits and cash investments. Receivables are 
monies owed to the Association.

Prepayments are payments made in the current financial 
year which relate to the next financial year. For example, 
annual subscriptions, etc.

Property, plant and equipment represents the value of the 
equipment, furniture and fittings, computers, website and 
intranet, and motor vehicles owned by the Association.

Intangible assets are trademarks, educational programs 
and other intellectual property owned by the Association.

← Back to Contents
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2.2 Current and non-current liabilities 

Bank overdraft indicates the amount the Association owes its 
bankers on its daily operating account. 

Payables are monies owed by the Association to its suppliers 
as at 30 June.

Premiums in advance are insurance premiums relating to the 
next financial year billed to members of the insurance fund 
before 30 June.

Provision for employee entitlements is the accounting term 
for annual leave, long service leave and retirement gratuities 
owed to staff.

Provision for claims outstanding represents insurance claims 
reported by members, together with an estimate of claims 
incurred but not yet reported, including an estimate of the 
costs of settlement for these claims.

2.3 Net assets

This term describes the difference between total assets and 
total liabilities. It represents the net worth of the Association 
as at 30 June.

3  Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows summarises cash payments 
and cash receipts for the year. The values may differ from 
those shown in the income statement because the income 
statement is prepared on an accrual basis. Cash is derived 
from, and is used in, two main areas:

3.1 Cash flows from operating activities Receipts relate to 
all cash received into the Association’s bank account from 
members and others who owed money to the Association in 
the form of fees or premiums. Receipts also include interest 
earned from the Association’s cash investments. It does not 
include receipts from the sale of assets.

Payments relate to all cash paid out of the Association’s bank 
account to staff, creditors and others. It does not include 
cash paid for the purchase of assets.

3.2 Cash flows from investing activities 

This relates to cash receipts and cash payments resulting 
from either the sale or purchase of property, plant and 
equipment. The statement of cash flows concludes with cash 
at end of year, which indicates the cash the Association has 
at 30 June to meet its debts and liabilities.

Notes to the financial statements
To enable the reader to understand the basis on which 
the values shown in the statements are established, it is 
necessary to provide details of the Association’s accounting 
policies. These are described in note 2. Apart from the 
accounting policies, the notes also give details behind many 
of the summary figures contained in the statements. The 
note numbers are shown beside the relevant items in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes 
in Equity and Statement of Financial Position.

Where the Association wishes to disclose information which 
cannot be incorporated into the statements, this is shown in 
the notes. The notes should be read at the same time as the 
financial statements in order to get a full and clear picture of 
the financial statements. 

Statement by directors
The statement by directors is made by two directors on 
behalf of the Board of the Municipal Association of Victoria. 
The statement states that, in the opinion of the Board, the 
financial statements present a true and fair view of the 
operations of the Association and that the Association can 
pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Independent audit report
This report is the independent auditor’s opinion on the 
financial statements. It provides the reader of the financial 
statements a completely independent opinion of the 
financial statements of the Association. The opinion 
covers all statutory and accounting standards compliance 
requirements, as well as providing a view on the truth and 
fairness of the financial statements.

Next Section →
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Statement by directors
as at 30 June 2022
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Combined Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Combined Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

Combined Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Combined Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Statement by the MAV Workcare Board

Statement by the MAV Directors

MAV WORKCARE
STATEMENT BY MAV WORKCARE BOARD

(a)   

(b)    

(c)    

(d)    

Marilyn Duncan
MAV WorkCare Board Chair Chief Executive Officer - Municipal Association of Victoria

Melbourne
4/10/2022

STATEMENT BY MAV DIRECTORS

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Municipal Association of Victoria, we state that:

In the opinion of the Directors:

(a)   

(b)    

(c)    

(d)    

(e)    

Cr. David Clark Cr.Tom Melican Kerry Thompson
President Director Chief Executive Officer

Melbourne
7/10/2022

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

NOTE
Premium revenue B1                        -          19,498,081 
Re-insurance related recoveries                        -               653,941 
Re-insurance expense                        -          (1,483,979)
NET PREMIUM INCOME                        -          18,668,043 
Claims expense C1                        -         (20,661,108)

                       -            2,423,392 
NET CLAIMS EXPENSE                        -         (18,237,716)
NET UNDERWRITING RESULT                        -               430,328 
Net investment gain B1                  8,467          6,100,877 
Administration and general expenses C2                        -         (13,265,107)
Movement in ceased self insurer provision C4                 (8,467)        (3,117,327)
Scheme wind-down contribution - MAV B1                        -            1,260,000 
Scheme wind-down recoveries - members B1                        -          17,930,000 
OPERATING SURPLUS                        -            9,338,771 
Other comprehensive income                        -                        -   

                       -            9,338,771 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Australia

Principal place of business:

OTHER INFORMATION

Level 11, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Australia

Nature of the operation and principal activities:
The MAV was approved by WorkSafe Victoria to operate a self-insurance workers' compensation Scheme for its members and their 
employees for the period November 2017 until 30 June 2021 when WorkSafe Victoria did not renew the licence and as a result for the period 
to 30 June 2027 the MAV Work Care is now a ceased self insurer.

Address of registered office:

Reinsurance and other recoveries

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

In the opinion of the MAV WorkCare Board:

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result 
of MAV WorkCare for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that date

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result of MAV WorkCare 
for the year ended 30 June 2022;
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV 
WorkCare as at that date;
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due; and
the accompanying MAV WorkCare Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that 
date;

Signed in accordance with the resolution of Directors.

Signed

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.

the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Kerry Thompson

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
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TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

In the opinion of the MAV WorkCare Board:

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result 
of MAV WorkCare for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that date

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result of MAV WorkCare 
for the year ended 30 June 2022;
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV 
WorkCare as at that date;
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due; and
the accompanying MAV WorkCare Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that 
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Signed in accordance with the resolution of Directors.

Signed

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.

the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of MAV WorkCare

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of MAV WorkCare (the “Scheme”), which comprises the statement of financial 
position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, and the Statement by MAV WorkCare Board and Statement by MAV Directors. 

In our opinion the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Scheme as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the ABC Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Scheme's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Scheme or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This 
description forms part of our auditor's report. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS

KRISTIE DUNDON
Partner

Melbourne
17 October 2022

Next Section →
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Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                 26,172        63,133,759 
Trade and other receivables E1            1,112,200        19,943,070 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS            1,138,372        83,076,829 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables E1            1,408,000          1,835,000 
Motor vehicles, furniture and equipment D1                        -                 13,433 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS            1,408,000          1,848,433 

TOTAL ASSETS            2,546,372        84,925,262 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables E2               366,521          2,383,655 
MAV subordinate loan                        -            4,000,000 
Provision for employee entitlements                        -                 68,936 
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4               541,139          1,282,328 

C1                        -          14,548,928 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               907,660        22,283,847 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4            1,638,712          1,835,000 

C1                        -          60,806,415 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITY            1,638,712        62,641,415 

TOTAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372        84,925,262 

NET LIABILITIES                        -                        -   

EQUITY                        -                        -   

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at the Beginning of the year                        -          (9,338,771)

Income from ordinary activities                        -            9,338,771 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR                        -                        -   

\

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2022 2021

NOTE  $  $ 

RECEIPTS
Premiums and fees          20,486,226        18,272,736 
Interest and investment gain                 10,523          6,220,231 

PAYMENTS
Suppliers and Loans          (8,261,005)       (10,843,836)
Claim payments                        -         (14,395,720)
Payments to WorkSafe Victoria        (75,355,343)                      -   

 G1        (63,119,599)           (746,589)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Receipts from investment activities                 12,012        52,098,908 

                12,012        52,098,908 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD        (63,107,587)        51,352,319 
Cash at beginning of year          63,133,759        11,781,440 
CASH AT END OF YEAR  G1                 26,172        63,133,759 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims

Page 2
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2022 2021
$ $

NOTE
Premium revenue B1                        -          19,498,081 
Re-insurance related recoveries                        -               653,941 
Re-insurance expense                        -          (1,483,979)
NET PREMIUM INCOME                        -          18,668,043 
Claims expense C1                        -         (20,661,108)

                       -            2,423,392 
NET CLAIMS EXPENSE                        -         (18,237,716)
NET UNDERWRITING RESULT                        -               430,328 
Net investment gain B1                  8,467          6,100,877 
Administration and general expenses C2                        -         (13,265,107)
Movement in ceased self insurer provision C4                 (8,467)        (3,117,327)
Scheme wind-down contribution - MAV B1                        -            1,260,000 
Scheme wind-down recoveries - members B1                        -          17,930,000 
OPERATING SURPLUS                        -            9,338,771 
Other comprehensive income                        -                        -   

                       -            9,338,771 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Australia

Principal place of business:

OTHER INFORMATION

Level 11, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Australia

Nature of the operation and principal activities:
The MAV was approved by WorkSafe Victoria to operate a self-insurance workers' compensation Scheme for its members and their 
employees for the period November 2017 until 30 June 2021 when WorkSafe Victoria did not renew the licence and as a result for the period 
to 30 June 2027 the MAV Work Care is now a ceased self insurer.

Address of registered office:

Reinsurance and other recoveries

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

In the opinion of the MAV WorkCare Board:

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result 
of MAV WorkCare for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that date

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the result of MAV WorkCare 
for the year ended 30 June 2022;
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV 
WorkCare as at that date;
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due; and
the accompanying MAV WorkCare Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of MAV WorkCare as at that 
date;

Signed in accordance with the resolution of Directors.

Signed

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that MAV WorkCare will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.

the financial statements and notes also comply with the Australian Accounting Standards as disclosed in note A3.

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Kerry Thompson

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                 26,172        63,133,759 
Trade and other receivables E1            1,112,200        19,943,070 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS            1,138,372        83,076,829 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables E1            1,408,000          1,835,000 
Motor vehicles, furniture and equipment D1                        -                 13,433 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS            1,408,000          1,848,433 

TOTAL ASSETS            2,546,372        84,925,262 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables E2               366,521          2,383,655 
MAV subordinate loan                        -            4,000,000 
Provision for employee entitlements                        -                 68,936 
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4               541,139          1,282,328 

C1                        -          14,548,928 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               907,660        22,283,847 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4            1,638,712          1,835,000 

C1                        -          60,806,415 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITY            1,638,712        62,641,415 

TOTAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372        84,925,262 

NET LIABILITIES                        -                        -   

EQUITY                        -                        -   

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at the Beginning of the year                        -          (9,338,771)

Income from ordinary activities                        -            9,338,771 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR                        -                        -   

\

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2022 2021

NOTE  $  $ 

RECEIPTS
Premiums and fees          20,486,226        18,272,736 
Interest and investment gain                 10,523          6,220,231 

PAYMENTS
Suppliers and Loans          (8,261,005)       (10,843,836)
Claim payments                        -         (14,395,720)
Payments to WorkSafe Victoria        (75,355,343)                      -   

 G1        (63,119,599)           (746,589)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Receipts from investment activities                 12,012        52,098,908 

                12,012        52,098,908 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD        (63,107,587)        51,352,319 
Cash at beginning of year          63,133,759        11,781,440 
CASH AT END OF YEAR  G1                 26,172        63,133,759 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                 26,172        63,133,759 
Trade and other receivables E1            1,112,200        19,943,070 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS            1,138,372        83,076,829 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables E1            1,408,000          1,835,000 
Motor vehicles, furniture and equipment D1                        -                 13,433 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS            1,408,000          1,848,433 

TOTAL ASSETS            2,546,372        84,925,262 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables E2               366,521          2,383,655 
MAV subordinate loan                        -            4,000,000 
Provision for employee entitlements                        -                 68,936 
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4               541,139          1,282,328 

C1                        -          14,548,928 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               907,660        22,283,847 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Provision for ceased self insurer members C4            1,638,712          1,835,000 

C1                        -          60,806,415 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITY            1,638,712        62,641,415 

TOTAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372        84,925,262 

NET LIABILITIES                        -                        -   

EQUITY                        -                        -   

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at the Beginning of the year                        -          (9,338,771)

Income from ordinary activities                        -            9,338,771 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR                        -                        -   

\

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2022 2021

NOTE  $  $ 

RECEIPTS
Premiums and fees          20,486,226        18,272,736 
Interest and investment gain                 10,523          6,220,231 

PAYMENTS
Suppliers and Loans          (8,261,005)       (10,843,836)
Claim payments                        -         (14,395,720)
Payments to WorkSafe Victoria        (75,355,343)                      -   

 G1        (63,119,599)           (746,589)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Receipts from investment activities                 12,012        52,098,908 

                12,012        52,098,908 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD        (63,107,587)        51,352,319 
Cash at beginning of year          63,133,759        11,781,440 
CASH AT END OF YEAR  G1                 26,172        63,133,759 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE A:  CORPORATE INFORMATION
Structure:
A1  Corporate information A3 Statement of compliance
A2  Basis of preparation A4 Transition to WorkSafe Victoria

A1  CORPORATE INFORMATION

A2

A3

A4

Opening net liabilities at 1 July 2020 (9,339)
Improvement of net liability position during 2020-21 3,735
Claims movement relating to wind-down (1,369)
Claims handling expense relating to wind-down (3,803)
Reinsurance asset impairment (5,297)
Ceased self insurer provision (3,117)
MAV contribution 1,260
Contribution from Work Care members on cessation of the Scheme 17,930
Net liability position at 30 June 2021 0

NOTE B:  FUNDING THE DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES
2022 2021

NOTE $ $
B1.  REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Premiums B1.2                        -          19,498,081 
Reinsurance related refunds                        -               653,941 
Recoveries from participating members A4                        -          17,930,000 
Contribution from the MAV on wind-down                        -            1,260,000 
Reinsurance and other recoveries                        -            2,423,392 

                       -          41,765,414 

Investment income B1.3 8,467                 68,429             
Realised investment gain -                     6,032,448        

                 8,467          6,100,877 

                 8,467        47,866,291 

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

TRANSITION TO WORKSAFE VICTORIA

The financial report of MAV WorkCare (the Scheme) for the year ended 30 June 2022 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors 
of the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), and a resolution of the directors of the MAV WorkCare board and Statement by the MAV WorkCare board on 
the date shown on the attached Statement by Directors and Statement by the WorkCare board.
The nature of the operations and principal activities of MAV WorkCare is the provision of workers' compensation insurance for its members and other Local 
Government Authorities. The MAV is specifically named in the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013 (Vic) (WIRC Act) as an entity that 
can hold a self-insurance licence for the benefit of its members.
MAV WorkCare is the workers' compensation insurance division of the MAV.  This division commenced business on 1 November 2017 and the last day the 
Scheme operated as a self-insurer was 30 June 2021.  From 1 July 2021 the MAV is a ceased self-insurer with ongoing requirements to 30 June 2027.  The 
MAV is an association incorporated by an Act of the Parliament of Victoria known as the Municipal Association Act 1907 .

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.  MAV WorkCare is a Not for Profit entity.

Commencing 1 July 2021, Work Safe Victoria is responsible for all claims. At 30 June 2021 the gross claims were assessed at $75.355 million made up of 
$14.549 million (current liability) and $60.806 million (non-current liability).  The assessed recoveries were $1.934 million with a net valuation of $73.421 
million. The current and non-current value at 30 June 2021 reflect the nature of the claims. Please also refer to Note I2 Loss on transfer of liabilities on 
commencement and closure of the Scheme, in relation to Work Safe Victoria’s assessed valuation.
The MAV has established a ceased self-insurer members provision for the estimated ongoing expenses at 30 June 2021, including bank guarantee expenses, 
expected to be incurred during the 6-year liability period as a ceased self-insurer. The provision is for $3.117 million. At 30 June 2022 the value of the 
provision has decreased to $2.179.

There is also a potential contingent liability in relation to the 3-year and 6-year liability period. Please refer to Note I3 Contingent Liability.

Under the Accident Compensation Act 1985 the MAV is specifically named as a body that can apply for a workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Licence. On 
3 May 2017, Work Safe Victoria approved the MAV as a self-insurer commencing from 4pm on 1 November 2017.  There were 31 inaugural members of the 
Scheme, including the MAV.  The last day of the Scheme was 30 June 2021 following Work Safe Victoria's decision not to renew the licence, with all claims 
being transferred to Work Safe Victoria from 1 July 2021.  The MAV continues to have responsibilities as a ceased self-insurer until 30 June 2027. The 
estimate of these expenses have been included in the ceased self insurer provision.

REVENUES FROM NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OUTSIDE THE OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

REVENUES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Due to the 6-year liability period the financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial report has been prepared on the accruals basis using historical costs and, except where stated, does not take into account current valuations of assets.

B1.3  Investment income
Investment income consists of interest which is recognised on a time-proportionate basis that takes into account the effective interest rate on the financial asset and movements 
in unit values in cash and fixed interest funds which are carried at fair value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

B1.2  Premiums
Premiums comprise amounts charged to members of the Scheme for policy cover, net of amounts returned to members as bonuses. The earned portion of premiums received 
is recognised as revenue.  Premiums are treated as earned from date of attachment of risk. 

Premiums - recognised in the period the fund is at risk

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been drawn up in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

B1.1  Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.  Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms. The 
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised. 

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial report are stated to assist in a general understanding of the financial report. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Investment Income - on an accruals basis including adjustments made to account for changes in the value of cash backed unit trusts to 
account as investment income. 

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The reconciliation of the net liability position from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 is shown below ($'000)

Future reinsurance and other Recoveries - on an accruals basis

BASIS OF PREPARATION
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE A:  CORPORATE INFORMATION
Structure:
A1  Corporate information A3 Statement of compliance
A2  Basis of preparation A4 Transition to WorkSafe Victoria

A1  CORPORATE INFORMATION

A2

A3

A4

Opening net liabilities at 1 July 2020 (9,339)
Improvement of net liability position during 2020-21 3,735
Claims movement relating to wind-down (1,369)
Claims handling expense relating to wind-down (3,803)
Reinsurance asset impairment (5,297)
Ceased self insurer provision (3,117)
MAV contribution 1,260
Contribution from Work Care members on cessation of the Scheme 17,930
Net liability position at 30 June 2021 0

NOTE B:  FUNDING THE DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES
2022 2021

NOTE $ $
B1.  REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Premiums B1.2                        -          19,498,081 
Reinsurance related refunds                        -               653,941 
Recoveries from participating members A4                        -          17,930,000 
Contribution from the MAV on wind-down                        -            1,260,000 
Reinsurance and other recoveries                        -            2,423,392 

                       -          41,765,414 

Investment income B1.3 8,467                 68,429             
Realised investment gain -                     6,032,448        

                 8,467          6,100,877 

                 8,467        47,866,291 

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

TRANSITION TO WORKSAFE VICTORIA

The financial report of MAV WorkCare (the Scheme) for the year ended 30 June 2022 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors 
of the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), and a resolution of the directors of the MAV WorkCare board and Statement by the MAV WorkCare board on 
the date shown on the attached Statement by Directors and Statement by the WorkCare board.
The nature of the operations and principal activities of MAV WorkCare is the provision of workers' compensation insurance for its members and other Local 
Government Authorities. The MAV is specifically named in the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013 (Vic) (WIRC Act) as an entity that 
can hold a self-insurance licence for the benefit of its members.
MAV WorkCare is the workers' compensation insurance division of the MAV.  This division commenced business on 1 November 2017 and the last day the 
Scheme operated as a self-insurer was 30 June 2021.  From 1 July 2021 the MAV is a ceased self-insurer with ongoing requirements to 30 June 2027.  The 
MAV is an association incorporated by an Act of the Parliament of Victoria known as the Municipal Association Act 1907 .

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.  MAV WorkCare is a Not for Profit entity.

Commencing 1 July 2021, Work Safe Victoria is responsible for all claims. At 30 June 2021 the gross claims were assessed at $75.355 million made up of 
$14.549 million (current liability) and $60.806 million (non-current liability).  The assessed recoveries were $1.934 million with a net valuation of $73.421 
million. The current and non-current value at 30 June 2021 reflect the nature of the claims. Please also refer to Note I2 Loss on transfer of liabilities on 
commencement and closure of the Scheme, in relation to Work Safe Victoria’s assessed valuation.
The MAV has established a ceased self-insurer members provision for the estimated ongoing expenses at 30 June 2021, including bank guarantee expenses, 
expected to be incurred during the 6-year liability period as a ceased self-insurer. The provision is for $3.117 million. At 30 June 2022 the value of the 
provision has decreased to $2.179.

There is also a potential contingent liability in relation to the 3-year and 6-year liability period. Please refer to Note I3 Contingent Liability.

Under the Accident Compensation Act 1985 the MAV is specifically named as a body that can apply for a workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Licence. On 
3 May 2017, Work Safe Victoria approved the MAV as a self-insurer commencing from 4pm on 1 November 2017.  There were 31 inaugural members of the 
Scheme, including the MAV.  The last day of the Scheme was 30 June 2021 following Work Safe Victoria's decision not to renew the licence, with all claims 
being transferred to Work Safe Victoria from 1 July 2021.  The MAV continues to have responsibilities as a ceased self-insurer until 30 June 2027. The 
estimate of these expenses have been included in the ceased self insurer provision.

REVENUES FROM NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OUTSIDE THE OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

REVENUES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Due to the 6-year liability period the financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial report has been prepared on the accruals basis using historical costs and, except where stated, does not take into account current valuations of assets.

B1.3  Investment income
Investment income consists of interest which is recognised on a time-proportionate basis that takes into account the effective interest rate on the financial asset and movements 
in unit values in cash and fixed interest funds which are carried at fair value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

B1.2  Premiums
Premiums comprise amounts charged to members of the Scheme for policy cover, net of amounts returned to members as bonuses. The earned portion of premiums received 
is recognised as revenue.  Premiums are treated as earned from date of attachment of risk. 

Premiums - recognised in the period the fund is at risk

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been drawn up in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

B1.1  Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.  Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms. The 
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised. 

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial report are stated to assist in a general understanding of the financial report. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Investment Income - on an accruals basis including adjustments made to account for changes in the value of cash backed unit trusts to 
account as investment income. 

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The reconciliation of the net liability position from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 is shown below ($'000)

Future reinsurance and other Recoveries - on an accruals basis

BASIS OF PREPARATION
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE C: COST OF DELIVERING OUR SERVICES
Structure:
C1 Claims Expenses C3 Scheme Management fees
C2 Administration & General expenses

C1. CLAIMS EXPENSES
2022 2021

NOTE $ $
Paid                        -          14,395,720 

 F1                        -          75,355,344 
 F1                        -         (69,089,956)

TOTAL CLAIMS EXPENSES                        -          20,661,108 

C2.  ADMINISTRATION & GENERAL EXPENSES
2022 2021

NOTE $ $
Administration and wind-down expenses                 17,014          4,599,223 
Bank guarantee expenses               713,313             605,803 
Impairment of reinsurance recoveries  A4 0          5,297,183 
Audit fees  H3                 99,800             103,760 
Depreciation of motor vehicles  D1                  1,226                 7,354 
Depreciation of information technology equipment  D1                     195                 1,838 
Staffing costs               114,396          1,003,560 
Levy                        -            1,155,346 
Scheme management fees  C3             491,040 
Expenditure incurred from prior year provision  C4             (945,944)                      -   
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION AND GENERAL EXPENDITURE                        -          13,265,107 

C3. SCHEME MANAGEMENT FEES 2022 2021
$ $

Risk Identification and prevention                        -               196,416 
Occupational Health and Safety                        -               196,416 
Training and Education                        -                 98,208 
TOTAL MANAGEMENT SCHEME FEES                        -               491,040 

C4. MOVEMENT IN CEASED SELF INSURER PROVISION 2022 2021

$ $
Opening balance            3,117,328                      -   
Expenditure incurred from prior year provision             (945,944)                      -   
Movement during the year                  8,467          3,117,328 
TOTAL CEASED SELF INSURER PROVISION            2,179,851          3,117,328 
Represented By:
CURRENT               541,139          1,282,328 
NON-CURRENT            1,638,712          1,835,000 
TOTAL            2,179,851          3,117,328 

Superimposed inflation refers to factors such as trends in court awards, for example increases in the level and period of compensation for injury.  The expected future payments 
are then discounted to a present value at the reporting date using discount rates based on the investment opportunities available to the organisation on the amounts of funds 
sufficient to meet claims as they become payable.  Details of rates applied are disclosed in note I.

Outstanding claims at end of financial year

Claims-incurred expense and liability for outstanding claims are recognised in respect of direct business.  The liability covers claims incurred but not yet paid, incurred but not yet 
reported claims, and the anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling those claims.  Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual claim files and estimating claims 
not notified and settlement costs using statistical and actuarial techniques.  The liability for outstanding claims is measured as the present value of the expected future 
payments, reflecting the fact that all the claims do not have to be paid out in the immediate future.  The expected future payments are estimated on the basis of the ultimate cost 
of settling claims, which is affected by factors arising during the period to settlement such as normal inflation and superimposed inflation.  Advice from the MAV’s actuary had 
estimated superimposed inflation to be 2.25% per annum at 30 June 2021 and a discount rate at 1.50%.

Included within administration and general expenses are 

Less: Outstanding claims at beginning
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE D:  ASSETS WE MANAGE
Structure
D1 Motor Vehicles, Furniture and Equipment

2022 2021

$ $
D1. MOTOR VEHICLES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Motor vehicles                        -                 36,768 
Less accumulated depreciation                        -               (25,125)

                       -                 11,643 
Furniture and equipment - at cost                        -                   6,246 
Less accumulated depreciation                        -                 (4,456)

                       -                   1,790 
                       -                 13,433 

MOTOR VEHICLES
Movements during the year
    Beginning of year                 11,643               18,997 
    Additions                        -                        -   
    Disposals               (10,417)                      -   
    Depreciation                 (1,226)               (7,354)
    End of year                        -                 11,643 
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Movements during the year
    Beginning of year                  1,790                 3,628 
    Additions                        -                        -   
    Disposals                 (1,595)                      -   
    Depreciation                    (195)               (1,838)
    End of year                        -                   1,790 

The following depreciation and amortisation rates are in use: Annual Rate
Motor Vehicles 20%
Furniture and Equipment 33%

NOTE E:  OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Structure
E1 Receivables
E2 Payables

2022 2021
$ $

E1 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
                       -            7,951,940 
                       -             (720,714)
                       -            7,231,226 

Impairment of reinsurance recoveries                        -          (5,297,183)
Other receivables            2,520,200        19,844,028 
TOTAL RECEIVABLES            2,520,200        21,778,071 
Represented By:
CURRENT            1,112,200        19,943,070 
NON-CURRENT            1,408,000          1,835,000 
TOTAL            2,520,200        21,778,070 

The ageing analysis of premiums receivable and other receivables are as follows:
Total <30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days >90 days

MAV WorkCare     2,520,200      1,835,000                        -                        -            685,200 

MAV WorkCare   21,778,070                  -                    2,056                      -       21,776,014 
E1.1 Trade Receivables

E1.3  Other receivables
Other receivables relate to amounts collectible from participating members of the Scheme as part of the wind-down of the Scheme. Terms are as set by the MAV Board and are 
aligned to the ceased self insurer requirements of WorkSafe Victoria and the participation agreements of the Scheme. Amounts are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating unit level. Individual debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An 
impairment provision is recognised where there is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default 
payments or debts more than 60 days overdue, other than outstanding reinsurance recoveries, are considered objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment 
loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Reinsurance recoveries 
are impaired at 30 June 2021. Member recoveries relating to the wind-down of the Scheme are not assessed as impaired. 

Motor vehicles, Furniture and Equipment are carried at cost, less where applicable, accumulated depreciation and impairment.  In 2022, motor vehicle and furniture and 
equipment was disposed at is carrying amount.  Accordingly, no gain or loss is recognised in the transaction.

2022

Discount to present value

All reinsurance recoveries were impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe Victoria was unable to recognise this asset from 1 July 2021.  Other recoveries are 

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less an allowance for impairment.  

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk liabilities are recognised as revenue.  
Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of outstanding claims. Recoveries are measured as the present value of the expected future 
receipts, calculated on the same basis as the liability for outstanding claims. The value of reinsurance recoveries are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe 
Victoria was unable to recognise this asset from 1 July 2021.

All fixed assets are depreciated/amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to the entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

2021

Total written down value at year end

E1.2  Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, 
furniture and equipment at the beginning and end of the 
financial year.

Future reinsurance and other recoveries receivable
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE D:  ASSETS WE MANAGE
Structure
D1 Motor Vehicles, Furniture and Equipment

2022 2021

$ $
D1. MOTOR VEHICLES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Motor vehicles                        -                 36,768 
Less accumulated depreciation                        -               (25,125)

                       -                 11,643 
Furniture and equipment - at cost                        -                   6,246 
Less accumulated depreciation                        -                 (4,456)

                       -                   1,790 
                       -                 13,433 

MOTOR VEHICLES
Movements during the year
    Beginning of year                 11,643               18,997 
    Additions                        -                        -   
    Disposals               (10,417)                      -   
    Depreciation                 (1,226)               (7,354)
    End of year                        -                 11,643 
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Movements during the year
    Beginning of year                  1,790                 3,628 
    Additions                        -                        -   
    Disposals                 (1,595)                      -   
    Depreciation                    (195)               (1,838)
    End of year                        -                   1,790 

The following depreciation and amortisation rates are in use: Annual Rate
Motor Vehicles 20%
Furniture and Equipment 33%

NOTE E:  OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Structure
E1 Receivables
E2 Payables

2022 2021
$ $

E1 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
                       -            7,951,940 
                       -             (720,714)
                       -            7,231,226 

Impairment of reinsurance recoveries                        -          (5,297,183)
Other receivables            2,520,200        19,844,028 
TOTAL RECEIVABLES            2,520,200        21,778,071 
Represented By:
CURRENT            1,112,200        19,943,070 
NON-CURRENT            1,408,000          1,835,000 
TOTAL            2,520,200        21,778,070 

The ageing analysis of premiums receivable and other receivables are as follows:
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E1.3  Other receivables
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2022

Discount to present value
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Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less an allowance for impairment.  

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk liabilities are recognised as revenue.  
Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of outstanding claims. Recoveries are measured as the present value of the expected future 
receipts, calculated on the same basis as the liability for outstanding claims. The value of reinsurance recoveries are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe 
Victoria was unable to recognise this asset from 1 July 2021.

All fixed assets are depreciated/amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to the entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

2021

Total written down value at year end

E1.2  Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, 
furniture and equipment at the beginning and end of the 
financial year.

Future reinsurance and other recoveries receivable
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

E2. Payables

NOTE F:  INSURANCE PROVISIONS
Structure:
F1 Outstanding claims F3 Net claims incurred
F2 Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability

2022 2021
$ $

F1. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
Central estimate                        -          76,015,442 
Discount to present value                        -          (6,818,616)

                       -          69,196,826 
Claims handling costs                        -            6,158,517 Risk margin                        -                        -   TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLAIMS                        -          75,355,343 
Comprising:
CURRENT                        -          14,548,928 
NON-CURRENT                        -          60,806,415 
TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLAIMS                        -          75,355,343 

F2 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN DISCOUNTED OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY
2022 2021

Gross Reinsurance 
& Recoveries Net Gross Reinsurance & 

Recoveries Net

$ $ $ $ $ $
                    -                   -                    -            69,089,956        (5,003,152)     64,086,804 
                    -                   -                    -              2,142,904           (389,540)       1,753,364 
                    -                   -                    -            18,518,204        (2,033,852)     16,484,352 
                    -                   -                    -            20,661,108        (2,423,392)     18,237,716 
                    -                   -                    -          (14,395,721)             195,318    (14,200,403)
                    -                   -                    -            75,355,343        (7,231,226)     68,124,117 

F3. NET CLAIMS INCURRED
2022 2021

Current Year Prior Year Total Current Year Prior Year Total
$ $ $ $ $ $

COMBINED
-                  -              -               17,944,338        5,663,102        23,607,440    
-                  -              -               (1,336,946)         (1,609,386)       (2,946,332)     
-                  -              -               16,607,392        4,053,716        20,661,108    
-                  -              -               (2,515,212)         (628,894)          (3,144,106)     

Discount -                  -              -               409,137             311,577           720,714         
-                  -              -               (2,106,075)         (317,317)          (2,423,392)     
-                  -              -               14,501,317        3,736,399        18,237,716    

These tables show the trend in the balance of outstanding claims.

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and, due to their short term nature, are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Scheme prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods 
and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Changes in assumptions 
Increase in claims incurred/recoveries anticipated

Outstanding claims brought forward

Discount
Gross Claims and related expenses – discounted

Incurred claims recognised in income statement

As at 30 June 2021, the MAV WorkCare Board determined that the outstanding claims liability was to be held at the 50% probability of sufficiency on the basis of the mutual 
structure of the MAV WorkCare Scheme.  As a result, a 0% risk margin was applied to the central estimate to achieve the desired level of sufficiency.

Reinsurance  and other recoveries undiscounted

Reinsurance and other recoveries – discounted
NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Gross claims and related expenses – undiscounted

Claim payments during the year
Outstanding claims carried forward
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

E2. Payables

NOTE F:  INSURANCE PROVISIONS
Structure:
F1 Outstanding claims F3 Net claims incurred
F2 Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability
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-                  -              -               14,501,317        3,736,399        18,237,716    

These tables show the trend in the balance of outstanding claims.

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and, due to their short term nature, are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Scheme prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods 
and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Changes in assumptions 
Increase in claims incurred/recoveries anticipated

Outstanding claims brought forward

Discount
Gross Claims and related expenses – discounted

Incurred claims recognised in income statement

As at 30 June 2021, the MAV WorkCare Board determined that the outstanding claims liability was to be held at the 50% probability of sufficiency on the basis of the mutual 
structure of the MAV WorkCare Scheme.  As a result, a 0% risk margin was applied to the central estimate to achieve the desired level of sufficiency.

Reinsurance  and other recoveries undiscounted

Reinsurance and other recoveries – discounted
NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Gross claims and related expenses – undiscounted

Claim payments during the year
Outstanding claims carried forward
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E2. Payables

NOTE F:  INSURANCE PROVISIONS
Structure:
F1 Outstanding claims F3 Net claims incurred
F2 Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability

2022 2021
$ $

F1. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
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Discount to present value                        -          (6,818,616)

                       -          69,196,826 
Claims handling costs                        -            6,158,517 Risk margin                        -                        -   TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLAIMS                        -          75,355,343 
Comprising:
CURRENT                        -          14,548,928 
NON-CURRENT                        -          60,806,415 
TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLAIMS                        -          75,355,343 

F2 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN DISCOUNTED OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY
2022 2021

Gross Reinsurance 
& Recoveries Net Gross Reinsurance & 

Recoveries Net

$ $ $ $ $ $
                    -                   -                    -            69,089,956        (5,003,152)     64,086,804 
                    -                   -                    -              2,142,904           (389,540)       1,753,364 
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F3. NET CLAIMS INCURRED
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COMBINED
-                  -              -               17,944,338        5,663,102        23,607,440    
-                  -              -               (1,336,946)         (1,609,386)       (2,946,332)     
-                  -              -               16,607,392        4,053,716        20,661,108    
-                  -              -               (2,515,212)         (628,894)          (3,144,106)     

Discount -                  -              -               409,137             311,577           720,714         
-                  -              -               (2,106,075)         (317,317)          (2,423,392)     
-                  -              -               14,501,317        3,736,399        18,237,716    

These tables show the trend in the balance of outstanding claims.

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and, due to their short term nature, are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Scheme prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods 
and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Changes in assumptions 
Increase in claims incurred/recoveries anticipated

Outstanding claims brought forward

Discount
Gross Claims and related expenses – discounted

Incurred claims recognised in income statement

As at 30 June 2021, the MAV WorkCare Board determined that the outstanding claims liability was to be held at the 50% probability of sufficiency on the basis of the mutual 
structure of the MAV WorkCare Scheme.  As a result, a 0% risk margin was applied to the central estimate to achieve the desired level of sufficiency.

Reinsurance  and other recoveries undiscounted

Reinsurance and other recoveries – discounted
NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Gross claims and related expenses – undiscounted

Claim payments during the year
Outstanding claims carried forward
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE G:  FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS
Structure
G1   Notes to statement of cash flows

 G1.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2022 2021

NOTE  $  $ 

Cash and Cash Equivalents                 26,172        63,133,759 

TOTAL CASH                 26,172        63,133,759 

                       -            9,338,771 
Adjustments for:

                 1,421                 9,192 

E1          19,257,870          2,109,817 

              (68,936)               12,272 
         (6,017,134)           (812,635)

Increase (decrease) in provision for ceased self insurance members             (937,477)          3,117,328 
                       -         (20,786,720)

F1        (75,355,343)          6,265,387 

       (63,119,599)           (746,589)

NOTE H:  PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS
Structure
H1 Related Parties H3 Audit Fees
H2 Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

H1. RELATED PARTIES

Board members during the year

Cr. D. Clark (MAV President) 

H2. REMUNERATON OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Annual Sitting 
Fee 2022

Annual Sitting 
Fee 2021

$ $
                  25,000                25,000 
                  15,000                15,000 

2022 2022
$ $

                  73,672              301,842 
                    4,076                22,500 

The Director MAV-WorkCare role finished in September 2021.

Loans to MAV WorkCare Board members

Other transactions

Insurance

H3. AUDIT FEES 2022 2021
 $  $ 

Audit of the entity                 99,800               83,240 
Audits-other                        -                 56,560 

                99,800             139,800 

Independent board members

Short-term remuneration of MAV WorkCare board and key 
management personnel (cost of key management personnel 
is recovered by the MAV)

No loans were made to or are payable by WorkCare board members during the year.

Post employment benefits

Cr. T. Melican (MAV Board ) from 1 October 2021

The MAV is a body corporate established under the Municipal Association Act 1907 to provide services for and represent local government authorities in Victoria.  The MAV and 
its wholly owned controlled entities trade with its members in the normal course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The Participation Agreement provides for the MAV to 
appoint the MAV WorkCare Board to be responsible for the administration of the Scheme.  Whilst the Scheme was operating the MAV paid workers' compensation insurance 
premiums to MAV WorkCare  (2021 $35,160).  At 30 June 2021 the MAV General Fund had a subordinated loan to MAV WorkCare to the value of $4 million, which is now been 
fully settled, with the MAV contributing $1.260 million.  Some administrative items are paid on behalf of MAV Work Care by MAV General and reimbursed.  Other than these, 
there were no other related party transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank.

A.  Elliott (Independent) until 29 September 2021

Amounts payable or due and payable for audit services:

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Increase(decrease) in employee entitlements

Increase (decrease) in outstanding claims

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks.

M. Duncan (Independent Chair) 

J.  Dore (Independent) 

K. Thompson (MAV Chief Executive Officer) 

There were no other material transactions with WorkCare board Members.

Independent Board members receive meeting fees.  The key management person is the Director - MAV WorkCare

Chairperson

The activities of the MAV WorkCare board members are covered by the MAV directors and officers indemnity insurance 
policy effected by the MAV.

Reconciliation of Net Cash (Used In) Operating Activities 
to Operating Surplus/(Deficit)

Surplus/(deficit) for year

TOTAL AUDIT FEE

NET CASH (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents at balance date as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows are held in NAB cash deposits and are 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables and 
prepayments

Increase (decrease) in loans, trade and other payables

Increase (decrease) in premiums in advance
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE G:  FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS
Structure
G1   Notes to statement of cash flows

 G1.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Post employment benefits

Cr. T. Melican (MAV Board ) from 1 October 2021

The MAV is a body corporate established under the Municipal Association Act 1907 to provide services for and represent local government authorities in Victoria.  The MAV and 
its wholly owned controlled entities trade with its members in the normal course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The Participation Agreement provides for the MAV to 
appoint the MAV WorkCare Board to be responsible for the administration of the Scheme.  Whilst the Scheme was operating the MAV paid workers' compensation insurance 
premiums to MAV WorkCare  (2021 $35,160).  At 30 June 2021 the MAV General Fund had a subordinated loan to MAV WorkCare to the value of $4 million, which is now been 
fully settled, with the MAV contributing $1.260 million.  Some administrative items are paid on behalf of MAV Work Care by MAV General and reimbursed.  Other than these, 
there were no other related party transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank.

A.  Elliott (Independent) until 29 September 2021

Amounts payable or due and payable for audit services:

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above.
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There were no other material transactions with WorkCare board Members.

Independent Board members receive meeting fees.  The key management person is the Director - MAV WorkCare
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policy effected by the MAV.
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Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables and 
prepayments
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
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NOTE I:  MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES
Structure

I1. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The MAV has a bank guarantee in place which meets WorkSafe Victoria's requirements with an annual fee of 1.1% of the face value of the bank guarantee each year.

In accordance with the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013, the MAV has a bank guarantee in place for the duration of the ceased self-insurer period. 
The guarantee is in respect of the tails claims liability given by an ADI to or in favour of WorkSafe Victoria.  The guarantee must guarantee payments of amounts not less than:  
a) insolvency risk in respect of - i) in relation to the first year of the liability period, the initial assessment of tail claims liability until the end of the first year after the exit date  ii) in 
relation to the second and subsequent years of the liability, the revised amount of the tail claims liability still outstanding as assessed at the end of each subsequent year of the 
duration of the next year until the final assessment date, and b) against claims deterioration - i) in relation to the period from the exit date until the interim assessment date, for 
the amount, if any, by which the revised assessment of the tail claims liability at the end of each year exceeds the initial assessment tail claims liability ii) in relation to the period 
referred to above, until the final assessment date, or if a review of the final assessment is undertaken resulting from the employer disputing WorkSafe Victoria's final revised 
assessment unit the date on which the review is finalised, for the amount, if any, by which the revised assessment of tail claims liability at the end of each year exceeds the 
revised assessment of tail claims liability as assessed at the end the 3rd year and 6th year.  

I4 Interest rate risk

I3 Actuarial assumptions and methods
I2 Accounting estimates and judgements I5 Liquidity risk

Where WorkSafe Victoria make a claim on the Bank Guarantee and the cash reserves are insufficient to clear the liability, the MAV will undertake to make a claim on its 
members within 30 days.

I1 Contingent liabilities

In accordance with the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013 , there is a six year liability period following the cessation of the Scheme (to 30 June 2027). 
During the liability period, adjustment payments may be required (or received).  The determination of any adjustment payments is dependent upon revised actuarial assessments 
of the Scheme's tail claim liabilities as undertaken by WorkSafe Victoria. Any adjustments, which are expected to occur at the 3-year and 6-year periods during this period will 
affect participating members. At 30 June 2022 the assessment is that payment experience over the past year had been broadly in line with expectations, and considered the 
initial assessment from 30 June 2021 to remain reasonable.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

I2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Estimation of outstanding claims liability at 30 June 2021

(b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

I3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
Actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Key actuarial assumptions
Wage inflation n/a 2.25%
Average claims handling expense n/a 8.90%
Discount rate n/a 1.50%
Risk margin n/a 0.00%
Superimposed inflation n/a 1.90%

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

VARIABLE

(v)    Allowances for  discount at 1.50%, as assumed by the Actuary

The Scheme makes estimates and judgements in respect of certain key assets and liabilities.  Estimates and judgements were continually reviewed and were based on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  The key areas in which critical estimates and 
judgements were applied at 30 June 2021 are described below.

Provision was made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, including the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported 
(“IBNR”) to the Scheme. The Scheme took all reasonable steps to ensure that it had appropriate information regarding its claims exposure. However, given the uncertainty in 
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established.

Expected future payments were inflated to take account of inflationary increases.  An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of 
economic inflation would have a corresponding impact on claims expense, with particular reference to longer tail claims.

The following assumptions have been made in determining the outstanding claims liabilities:

(ii)    Allowance for incurred but not reported claims as confirmed by the actuarial review on 30 June 2021
(iii)   An allowance of 8.90% for claim administration expenses, as assumed by the Actuary

IMPACT OF MOVEMENT IN VARIABLE
Wage inflation

Case estimates were initially established in accordance with established guidelines and by reference to the known facts. Where 
new information becomes available the initial case estimate will change. This development movement is applied to open claims and 
will have a corresponding impact on claims expense.

The Actuary had assumed a risk margin of 0% of the net liabilities to give a probability of 50% that the provisions will prove adequate to meet the relevant liabilities.

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries.  A separate estimate was made of the amounts that were recoverable from reinsurers and any third party.
The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims provision involves:
(i)     Establishing a case estimate for each reported claim at year-end taking into account legal advice where appropriate on larger claims

Discount rate

MAV WorkCare commenced business operations on 1 November 2017.  It provided workers' compensation insurance for thirty Local Government Authorities and the Municipal 
Association of Victoria.   The Actuary was supplied with details of all transactions (payments, recoveries, estimates) to 30 June 2021. The individual claim payments and case 
estimates reconciled closely with totals in MAV WorkCare's financial statements for the year of cover.  The actuary subdivided the claims data into 2 groups (Above Excess and 
Below Excess) and made separate estimates of the gross outstanding claims liabilities for each claim type. The actuary estimated the gross outstanding claims liabilities for 
Above Excess (Standard) claims by splitting the payments on Above Excess claims into 5 different sub-groups and modelling each sub-group separately. Above Excess claims 
were predominantly estimated using a numbers times average size method (PPCI).   Below Excess (Minor) claims were modelled separately and utilised a numbers times 
average size method.  Payments were projected with a payment pattern, based on past experience.  Estimates of non reinsurance recoveries were made by a recoveries per 
claim method.  Outstanding non reinsurance recoveries for accident periods up to and including 2016/17 were reduced to 0% to allow for the inability of MAV WorkCare to claim 
recoveries for these accident periods.  Reinsurance recoveries for periods post 1 November 2017 were estimated by considering a total payment model and a total payment 
model where payments are capped at the expected excess of loss limit.  The difference between these two models is the implied reinsurance recovery that would have been 
received if a similar reinsurance contract had been in place for historical periods.  There was no allowance for reinsurance recoveries for periods prior to 1 November 2017.

(iv)   Allowances for claim inflation of 2.25%, as assumed by the Actuary

The outstanding claims liability was calculated by reference to expected future payments. These payments were discounted to 
adjust for the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have an opposing impact on total 
claims expense.

(vi)   A risk margin of 0% of net outstanding claims after the effect of reinsurance has been applied, as assumed by the actuary
  
Details of specific actuarial assumptions used at 30 June 2021 in deriving the outstanding claims liability at year-end are detailed in note I5.

Case estimate development

Based on economic forecasts, market based expectations for longer term CPI expectations and a long term CPI-wage gap, wage inflation was assumed to be 2.25%. The 
discount rate was assumed to be 1.50% pa., derived from the yields on Commonwealth government bonds.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts were estimated for each fund year, from the payments to date and estimated outstanding claims history at 30 June 2021 taking into 
account the reinsurance terms applying to that fund year. All reinsurance assets are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe Victoria is unable to recognise an asset 
from 1 July 2021.

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

I2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Estimation of outstanding claims liability at 30 June 2021

(b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

I3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
Actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Key actuarial assumptions
Wage inflation n/a 2.25%
Average claims handling expense n/a 8.90%
Discount rate n/a 1.50%
Risk margin n/a 0.00%
Superimposed inflation n/a 1.90%

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

VARIABLE

(v)    Allowances for  discount at 1.50%, as assumed by the Actuary

The Scheme makes estimates and judgements in respect of certain key assets and liabilities.  Estimates and judgements were continually reviewed and were based on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  The key areas in which critical estimates and 
judgements were applied at 30 June 2021 are described below.

Provision was made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, including the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported 
(“IBNR”) to the Scheme. The Scheme took all reasonable steps to ensure that it had appropriate information regarding its claims exposure. However, given the uncertainty in 
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established.

Expected future payments were inflated to take account of inflationary increases.  An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of 
economic inflation would have a corresponding impact on claims expense, with particular reference to longer tail claims.

The following assumptions have been made in determining the outstanding claims liabilities:

(ii)    Allowance for incurred but not reported claims as confirmed by the actuarial review on 30 June 2021
(iii)   An allowance of 8.90% for claim administration expenses, as assumed by the Actuary

IMPACT OF MOVEMENT IN VARIABLE
Wage inflation

Case estimates were initially established in accordance with established guidelines and by reference to the known facts. Where 
new information becomes available the initial case estimate will change. This development movement is applied to open claims and 
will have a corresponding impact on claims expense.

The Actuary had assumed a risk margin of 0% of the net liabilities to give a probability of 50% that the provisions will prove adequate to meet the relevant liabilities.

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries.  A separate estimate was made of the amounts that were recoverable from reinsurers and any third party.
The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims provision involves:
(i)     Establishing a case estimate for each reported claim at year-end taking into account legal advice where appropriate on larger claims

Discount rate

MAV WorkCare commenced business operations on 1 November 2017.  It provided workers' compensation insurance for thirty Local Government Authorities and the Municipal 
Association of Victoria.   The Actuary was supplied with details of all transactions (payments, recoveries, estimates) to 30 June 2021. The individual claim payments and case 
estimates reconciled closely with totals in MAV WorkCare's financial statements for the year of cover.  The actuary subdivided the claims data into 2 groups (Above Excess and 
Below Excess) and made separate estimates of the gross outstanding claims liabilities for each claim type. The actuary estimated the gross outstanding claims liabilities for 
Above Excess (Standard) claims by splitting the payments on Above Excess claims into 5 different sub-groups and modelling each sub-group separately. Above Excess claims 
were predominantly estimated using a numbers times average size method (PPCI).   Below Excess (Minor) claims were modelled separately and utilised a numbers times 
average size method.  Payments were projected with a payment pattern, based on past experience.  Estimates of non reinsurance recoveries were made by a recoveries per 
claim method.  Outstanding non reinsurance recoveries for accident periods up to and including 2016/17 were reduced to 0% to allow for the inability of MAV WorkCare to claim 
recoveries for these accident periods.  Reinsurance recoveries for periods post 1 November 2017 were estimated by considering a total payment model and a total payment 
model where payments are capped at the expected excess of loss limit.  The difference between these two models is the implied reinsurance recovery that would have been 
received if a similar reinsurance contract had been in place for historical periods.  There was no allowance for reinsurance recoveries for periods prior to 1 November 2017.

(iv)   Allowances for claim inflation of 2.25%, as assumed by the Actuary

The outstanding claims liability was calculated by reference to expected future payments. These payments were discounted to 
adjust for the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have an opposing impact on total 
claims expense.

(vi)   A risk margin of 0% of net outstanding claims after the effect of reinsurance has been applied, as assumed by the actuary
  
Details of specific actuarial assumptions used at 30 June 2021 in deriving the outstanding claims liability at year-end are detailed in note I5.

Case estimate development

Based on economic forecasts, market based expectations for longer term CPI expectations and a long term CPI-wage gap, wage inflation was assumed to be 2.25%. The 
discount rate was assumed to be 1.50% pa., derived from the yields on Commonwealth government bonds.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts were estimated for each fund year, from the payments to date and estimated outstanding claims history at 30 June 2021 taking into 
account the reinsurance terms applying to that fund year. All reinsurance assets are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe Victoria is unable to recognise an asset 
from 1 July 2021.

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

I2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Estimation of outstanding claims liability at 30 June 2021

(b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

I3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
Actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Key actuarial assumptions
Wage inflation n/a 2.25%
Average claims handling expense n/a 8.90%
Discount rate n/a 1.50%
Risk margin n/a 0.00%
Superimposed inflation n/a 1.90%

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

VARIABLE

(v)    Allowances for  discount at 1.50%, as assumed by the Actuary

The Scheme makes estimates and judgements in respect of certain key assets and liabilities.  Estimates and judgements were continually reviewed and were based on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  The key areas in which critical estimates and 
judgements were applied at 30 June 2021 are described below.

Provision was made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, including the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported 
(“IBNR”) to the Scheme. The Scheme took all reasonable steps to ensure that it had appropriate information regarding its claims exposure. However, given the uncertainty in 
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established.

Expected future payments were inflated to take account of inflationary increases.  An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of 
economic inflation would have a corresponding impact on claims expense, with particular reference to longer tail claims.

The following assumptions have been made in determining the outstanding claims liabilities:

(ii)    Allowance for incurred but not reported claims as confirmed by the actuarial review on 30 June 2021
(iii)   An allowance of 8.90% for claim administration expenses, as assumed by the Actuary

IMPACT OF MOVEMENT IN VARIABLE
Wage inflation

Case estimates were initially established in accordance with established guidelines and by reference to the known facts. Where 
new information becomes available the initial case estimate will change. This development movement is applied to open claims and 
will have a corresponding impact on claims expense.

The Actuary had assumed a risk margin of 0% of the net liabilities to give a probability of 50% that the provisions will prove adequate to meet the relevant liabilities.

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries.  A separate estimate was made of the amounts that were recoverable from reinsurers and any third party.
The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims provision involves:
(i)     Establishing a case estimate for each reported claim at year-end taking into account legal advice where appropriate on larger claims

Discount rate

MAV WorkCare commenced business operations on 1 November 2017.  It provided workers' compensation insurance for thirty Local Government Authorities and the Municipal 
Association of Victoria.   The Actuary was supplied with details of all transactions (payments, recoveries, estimates) to 30 June 2021. The individual claim payments and case 
estimates reconciled closely with totals in MAV WorkCare's financial statements for the year of cover.  The actuary subdivided the claims data into 2 groups (Above Excess and 
Below Excess) and made separate estimates of the gross outstanding claims liabilities for each claim type. The actuary estimated the gross outstanding claims liabilities for 
Above Excess (Standard) claims by splitting the payments on Above Excess claims into 5 different sub-groups and modelling each sub-group separately. Above Excess claims 
were predominantly estimated using a numbers times average size method (PPCI).   Below Excess (Minor) claims were modelled separately and utilised a numbers times 
average size method.  Payments were projected with a payment pattern, based on past experience.  Estimates of non reinsurance recoveries were made by a recoveries per 
claim method.  Outstanding non reinsurance recoveries for accident periods up to and including 2016/17 were reduced to 0% to allow for the inability of MAV WorkCare to claim 
recoveries for these accident periods.  Reinsurance recoveries for periods post 1 November 2017 were estimated by considering a total payment model and a total payment 
model where payments are capped at the expected excess of loss limit.  The difference between these two models is the implied reinsurance recovery that would have been 
received if a similar reinsurance contract had been in place for historical periods.  There was no allowance for reinsurance recoveries for periods prior to 1 November 2017.

(iv)   Allowances for claim inflation of 2.25%, as assumed by the Actuary

The outstanding claims liability was calculated by reference to expected future payments. These payments were discounted to 
adjust for the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have an opposing impact on total 
claims expense.

(vi)   A risk margin of 0% of net outstanding claims after the effect of reinsurance has been applied, as assumed by the actuary
  
Details of specific actuarial assumptions used at 30 June 2021 in deriving the outstanding claims liability at year-end are detailed in note I5.

Case estimate development

Based on economic forecasts, market based expectations for longer term CPI expectations and a long term CPI-wage gap, wage inflation was assumed to be 2.25%. The 
discount rate was assumed to be 1.50% pa., derived from the yields on Commonwealth government bonds.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts were estimated for each fund year, from the payments to date and estimated outstanding claims history at 30 June 2021 taking into 
account the reinsurance terms applying to that fund year. All reinsurance assets are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe Victoria is unable to recognise an asset 
from 1 July 2021.

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

I2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Estimation of outstanding claims liability at 30 June 2021

(b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

I3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
Actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Key actuarial assumptions
Wage inflation n/a 2.25%
Average claims handling expense n/a 8.90%
Discount rate n/a 1.50%
Risk margin n/a 0.00%
Superimposed inflation n/a 1.90%

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

VARIABLE

(v)    Allowances for  discount at 1.50%, as assumed by the Actuary

The Scheme makes estimates and judgements in respect of certain key assets and liabilities.  Estimates and judgements were continually reviewed and were based on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  The key areas in which critical estimates and 
judgements were applied at 30 June 2021 are described below.

Provision was made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, including the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported 
(“IBNR”) to the Scheme. The Scheme took all reasonable steps to ensure that it had appropriate information regarding its claims exposure. However, given the uncertainty in 
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established.

Expected future payments were inflated to take account of inflationary increases.  An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of 
economic inflation would have a corresponding impact on claims expense, with particular reference to longer tail claims.

The following assumptions have been made in determining the outstanding claims liabilities:

(ii)    Allowance for incurred but not reported claims as confirmed by the actuarial review on 30 June 2021
(iii)   An allowance of 8.90% for claim administration expenses, as assumed by the Actuary

IMPACT OF MOVEMENT IN VARIABLE
Wage inflation

Case estimates were initially established in accordance with established guidelines and by reference to the known facts. Where 
new information becomes available the initial case estimate will change. This development movement is applied to open claims and 
will have a corresponding impact on claims expense.

The Actuary had assumed a risk margin of 0% of the net liabilities to give a probability of 50% that the provisions will prove adequate to meet the relevant liabilities.

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries.  A separate estimate was made of the amounts that were recoverable from reinsurers and any third party.
The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims provision involves:
(i)     Establishing a case estimate for each reported claim at year-end taking into account legal advice where appropriate on larger claims

Discount rate

MAV WorkCare commenced business operations on 1 November 2017.  It provided workers' compensation insurance for thirty Local Government Authorities and the Municipal 
Association of Victoria.   The Actuary was supplied with details of all transactions (payments, recoveries, estimates) to 30 June 2021. The individual claim payments and case 
estimates reconciled closely with totals in MAV WorkCare's financial statements for the year of cover.  The actuary subdivided the claims data into 2 groups (Above Excess and 
Below Excess) and made separate estimates of the gross outstanding claims liabilities for each claim type. The actuary estimated the gross outstanding claims liabilities for 
Above Excess (Standard) claims by splitting the payments on Above Excess claims into 5 different sub-groups and modelling each sub-group separately. Above Excess claims 
were predominantly estimated using a numbers times average size method (PPCI).   Below Excess (Minor) claims were modelled separately and utilised a numbers times 
average size method.  Payments were projected with a payment pattern, based on past experience.  Estimates of non reinsurance recoveries were made by a recoveries per 
claim method.  Outstanding non reinsurance recoveries for accident periods up to and including 2016/17 were reduced to 0% to allow for the inability of MAV WorkCare to claim 
recoveries for these accident periods.  Reinsurance recoveries for periods post 1 November 2017 were estimated by considering a total payment model and a total payment 
model where payments are capped at the expected excess of loss limit.  The difference between these two models is the implied reinsurance recovery that would have been 
received if a similar reinsurance contract had been in place for historical periods.  There was no allowance for reinsurance recoveries for periods prior to 1 November 2017.

(iv)   Allowances for claim inflation of 2.25%, as assumed by the Actuary

The outstanding claims liability was calculated by reference to expected future payments. These payments were discounted to 
adjust for the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have an opposing impact on total 
claims expense.

(vi)   A risk margin of 0% of net outstanding claims after the effect of reinsurance has been applied, as assumed by the actuary
  
Details of specific actuarial assumptions used at 30 June 2021 in deriving the outstanding claims liability at year-end are detailed in note I5.

Case estimate development

Based on economic forecasts, market based expectations for longer term CPI expectations and a long term CPI-wage gap, wage inflation was assumed to be 2.25%. The 
discount rate was assumed to be 1.50% pa., derived from the yields on Commonwealth government bonds.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts were estimated for each fund year, from the payments to date and estimated outstanding claims history at 30 June 2021 taking into 
account the reinsurance terms applying to that fund year. All reinsurance assets are reported as impaired at 30 June 2021 as Work Safe Victoria is unable to recognise an asset 
from 1 July 2021.

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:
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I4.  INTEREST RATE RISK
MAV Work Care's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective average interest rate for the classes of financial assets is set out below:

Non- Interest 
Earning

Floating Interest 
Rate

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                        -                 26,172 
Investments                        -                        -   
Trade and other receivables            2,520,200                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS            2,520,200               26,172 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.85%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                        -                        -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions                        -                        -   
Trade and other payables/loans            2,546,372                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372                      -   
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents        11,781,440 
Investments        52,098,906 
Trade and other receivables          16,425,906             121,410 
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS          16,425,906        64,001,756 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.47%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims          69,089,956                      -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions          20,786,720                      -   
Trade and other payables            7,252,954                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES          97,129,630                      -   

Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities are:

2022 2021
$ $

3 months or less                        -          10,117,001 
3-12 months                        -          12,275,558 
1-5 years                        -          37,245,036 
Over 5 years                        -          32,713,141 

                       -          92,350,736 

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest resulting from recognised 
financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.  Cash flows for financial assets and liabilities without fixed amounts or timing are based on 
conditions existing at 30 June 2022.

2022

2021

Investments are considered level 2 financial assets in accordance with AASB 13 (Fair Value Measurement). The carrying amounts of financial 
assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate fair value. All maturity dates are within twelve months.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Interest rate risk

Variable Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.5%/+2.5%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total 
Accumulated 

Funds after the 
impact of 

applying variable

% % $ $
IMPACT OF CHANGES IN INTEREST RATE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Base value at 30 June 2022 0.85%                        -                        -   
Interest Rate p.a. 1.35%                     131                   131 

3.35%                     654                   654 

Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.3%/-.08%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total Accumulated 
Funds after the 

impact of applying 
variable

Base value at 30 June 2021 0.08%            9,338,771                      -   
Interest Rate p.a. 0.38%            9,338,771             315,669 

0.00%            9,288,264             (50,507)

I5. LIQUIDITY RISK
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectation

Year ended 30 June 2022 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents          26,172                26,172 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables         685,200               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,520,200 

        711,372               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,546,372 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other payables/loans         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
NET MATURITY         344,851             (114,139)           (230,712)                   -                         -   

Year ended 30 June 2021 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents    63,133,759         63,133,759 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables            2,056          21,776,014                      -                     -           21,778,070 

   63,135,815          21,776,014                      -                     -           84,911,829 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims      3,664,410          10,993,230        35,410,036     32,713,141         82,780,817 
Trade and other payables/loans      6,452,592            1,282,328          1,835,000                   -             9,569,920 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    10,117,001          12,275,558        37,245,036     32,713,141         92,350,736 
NET MATURITY    53,018,813            9,500,457       (37,245,036)    (32,713,141)          (7,438,907)

MAV WorkCare is exposed to interest rate risk from its cash at bank.  
MAV WorkCare manages its interest rate risk with the advice and assistance of its Investment Adviser and its independent actuary.  Interest rate risk exposure showing the 
effect on the net operating result and total accumulated resulting from ‘reasonably possible’ changes in interest rate risk at 30 June 2022 is set out in the table below.

The risk implied from the values in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.  These liabilities originate from workers' 
compensation insurance contracts and other financial assets used in the ongoing operations of the business. These assets are considered in the MAV’s 
overall liquidity risk.  To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the MAV has established a 
comprehensive risk reporting covering its Workcare insurance business that reflects the management of settlement of financial assets and liabilities.
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Interest rate risk

Variable Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.5%/+2.5%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total 
Accumulated 

Funds after the 
impact of 

applying variable

% % $ $
IMPACT OF CHANGES IN INTEREST RATE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Base value at 30 June 2022 0.85%                        -                        -   
Interest Rate p.a. 1.35%                     131                   131 

3.35%                     654                   654 

Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.3%/-.08%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total Accumulated 
Funds after the 

impact of applying 
variable

Base value at 30 June 2021 0.08%            9,338,771                      -   
Interest Rate p.a. 0.38%            9,338,771             315,669 

0.00%            9,288,264             (50,507)

I5. LIQUIDITY RISK
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectation

Year ended 30 June 2022 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents          26,172                26,172 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables         685,200               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,520,200 

        711,372               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,546,372 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other payables/loans         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
NET MATURITY         344,851             (114,139)           (230,712)                   -                         -   

Year ended 30 June 2021 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents    63,133,759         63,133,759 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables            2,056          21,776,014                      -                     -           21,778,070 

   63,135,815          21,776,014                      -                     -           84,911,829 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims      3,664,410          10,993,230        35,410,036     32,713,141         82,780,817 
Trade and other payables/loans      6,452,592            1,282,328          1,835,000                   -             9,569,920 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    10,117,001          12,275,558        37,245,036     32,713,141         92,350,736 
NET MATURITY    53,018,813            9,500,457       (37,245,036)    (32,713,141)          (7,438,907)

MAV WorkCare is exposed to interest rate risk from its cash at bank.  
MAV WorkCare manages its interest rate risk with the advice and assistance of its Investment Adviser and its independent actuary.  Interest rate risk exposure showing the 
effect on the net operating result and total accumulated resulting from ‘reasonably possible’ changes in interest rate risk at 30 June 2022 is set out in the table below.

The risk implied from the values in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.  These liabilities originate from workers' 
compensation insurance contracts and other financial assets used in the ongoing operations of the business. These assets are considered in the MAV’s 
overall liquidity risk.  To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the MAV has established a 
comprehensive risk reporting covering its Workcare insurance business that reflects the management of settlement of financial assets and liabilities.
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Interest rate risk

Variable Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.5%/+2.5%

Operating surplus 
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Interest Rate p.a. 0.38%            9,338,771             315,669 
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$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents          26,172                26,172 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables         685,200               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,520,200 

        711,372               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,546,372 
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Trade and other payables/loans         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
NET MATURITY         344,851             (114,139)           (230,712)                   -                         -   
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Cash and cash equivalents    63,133,759         63,133,759 
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Trade and other receivables            2,056          21,776,014                      -                     -           21,778,070 
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Outstanding claims      3,664,410          10,993,230        35,410,036     32,713,141         82,780,817 
Trade and other payables/loans      6,452,592            1,282,328          1,835,000                   -             9,569,920 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    10,117,001          12,275,558        37,245,036     32,713,141         92,350,736 
NET MATURITY    53,018,813            9,500,457       (37,245,036)    (32,713,141)          (7,438,907)

MAV WorkCare is exposed to interest rate risk from its cash at bank.  
MAV WorkCare manages its interest rate risk with the advice and assistance of its Investment Adviser and its independent actuary.  Interest rate risk exposure showing the 
effect on the net operating result and total accumulated resulting from ‘reasonably possible’ changes in interest rate risk at 30 June 2022 is set out in the table below.

The risk implied from the values in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.  These liabilities originate from workers' 
compensation insurance contracts and other financial assets used in the ongoing operations of the business. These assets are considered in the MAV’s 
overall liquidity risk.  To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the MAV has established a 
comprehensive risk reporting covering its Workcare insurance business that reflects the management of settlement of financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

I4.  INTEREST RATE RISK
MAV Work Care's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective average interest rate for the classes of financial assets is set out below:

Non- Interest 
Earning

Floating Interest 
Rate

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                        -                 26,172 
Investments                        -                        -   
Trade and other receivables            2,520,200                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS            2,520,200               26,172 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.85%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                        -                        -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions                        -                        -   
Trade and other payables/loans            2,546,372                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372                      -   
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents        11,781,440 
Investments        52,098,906 
Trade and other receivables          16,425,906             121,410 
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS          16,425,906        64,001,756 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.47%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims          69,089,956                      -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions          20,786,720                      -   
Trade and other payables            7,252,954                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES          97,129,630                      -   

Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities are:

2022 2021
$ $

3 months or less                        -          10,117,001 
3-12 months                        -          12,275,558 
1-5 years                        -          37,245,036 
Over 5 years                        -          32,713,141 

                       -          92,350,736 

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest resulting from recognised 
financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.  Cash flows for financial assets and liabilities without fixed amounts or timing are based on 
conditions existing at 30 June 2022.

2022

2021

Investments are considered level 2 financial assets in accordance with AASB 13 (Fair Value Measurement). The carrying amounts of financial 
assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate fair value. All maturity dates are within twelve months.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Interest rate risk

Variable Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.5%/+2.5%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total 
Accumulated 

Funds after the 
impact of 

applying variable

% % $ $
IMPACT OF CHANGES IN INTEREST RATE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Base value at 30 June 2022 0.85%                        -                        -   
Interest Rate p.a. 1.35%                     131                   131 

3.35%                     654                   654 

Current Rate Change 
variable to 

+0.3%/-.08%

Operating surplus 
(deficit) at 30 June 

2022

Total Accumulated 
Funds after the 

impact of applying 
variable

Base value at 30 June 2021 0.08%            9,338,771                      -   
Interest Rate p.a. 0.38%            9,338,771             315,669 

0.00%            9,288,264             (50,507)

I5. LIQUIDITY RISK
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectation

Year ended 30 June 2022 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents          26,172                26,172 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables         685,200               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,520,200 

        711,372               427,000          1,408,000                   -             2,546,372 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other payables/loans         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES         366,521               541,139          1,638,712                   -             2,546,372 
NET MATURITY         344,851             (114,139)           (230,712)                   -                         -   

Year ended 30 June 2021 <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents    63,133,759         63,133,759 
Investments                  -                          -                        -                     -                         -   
Trade and other receivables            2,056          21,776,014                      -                     -           21,778,070 

   63,135,815          21,776,014                      -                     -           84,911,829 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims      3,664,410          10,993,230        35,410,036     32,713,141         82,780,817 
Trade and other payables/loans      6,452,592            1,282,328          1,835,000                   -             9,569,920 
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    10,117,001          12,275,558        37,245,036     32,713,141         92,350,736 
NET MATURITY    53,018,813            9,500,457       (37,245,036)    (32,713,141)          (7,438,907)

MAV WorkCare is exposed to interest rate risk from its cash at bank.  
MAV WorkCare manages its interest rate risk with the advice and assistance of its Investment Adviser and its independent actuary.  Interest rate risk exposure showing the 
effect on the net operating result and total accumulated resulting from ‘reasonably possible’ changes in interest rate risk at 30 June 2022 is set out in the table below.

The risk implied from the values in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.  These liabilities originate from workers' 
compensation insurance contracts and other financial assets used in the ongoing operations of the business. These assets are considered in the MAV’s 
overall liquidity risk.  To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the MAV has established a 
comprehensive risk reporting covering its Workcare insurance business that reflects the management of settlement of financial assets and liabilities.
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I4.  INTEREST RATE RISK
MAV Work Care's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective average interest rate for the classes of financial assets is set out below:

Non- Interest 
Earning

Floating Interest 
Rate

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                        -                 26,172 
Investments                        -                        -   
Trade and other receivables            2,520,200                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS            2,520,200               26,172 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.85%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                        -                        -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions                        -                        -   
Trade and other payables/loans            2,546,372                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372                      -   
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents        11,781,440 
Investments        52,098,906 
Trade and other receivables          16,425,906             121,410 
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS          16,425,906        64,001,756 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.47%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims          69,089,956                      -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions          20,786,720                      -   
Trade and other payables            7,252,954                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES          97,129,630                      -   

Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities are:

2022 2021
$ $

3 months or less                        -          10,117,001 
3-12 months                        -          12,275,558 
1-5 years                        -          37,245,036 
Over 5 years                        -          32,713,141 

                       -          92,350,736 

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest resulting from recognised 
financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.  Cash flows for financial assets and liabilities without fixed amounts or timing are based on 
conditions existing at 30 June 2022.

2022

2021

Investments are considered level 2 financial assets in accordance with AASB 13 (Fair Value Measurement). The carrying amounts of financial 
assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate fair value. All maturity dates are within twelve months.
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J:  OTHER MATTERS
Structure
J1 Summary of J4 Events Subsequent
J2 Income tax J5 Number of employees:
J3 Comparative figures

J1. SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reference Application Date 
1 Jan 22

J2. INCOME TAX

J3. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

J4. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT

J5. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT 30 JUNE 2022
Nil (2021=Three)

The $685,200 receivable outstanding at 30 June 2022 was received in early 2022-23.

Impact on MAV Financial Report
Amendments to AAS 
Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-Current

1 Jan 22

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective.

Title Summary

The MAV is a State and Territory Body (STB) and is exempt from income tax, in accordance with Division 1AB of Part III of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.

Application of this standard is 
not expected to have a material 
impact.

AASB 2020-1
Application Date of Standard
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I4.  INTEREST RATE RISK
MAV Work Care's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective average interest rate for the classes of financial assets is set out below:

Non- Interest 
Earning

Floating Interest 
Rate

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                        -                 26,172 
Investments                        -                        -   
Trade and other receivables            2,520,200                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS            2,520,200               26,172 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.85%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims                        -                        -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions                        -                        -   
Trade and other payables/loans            2,546,372                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES            2,546,372                      -   
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents        11,781,440 
Investments        52,098,906 
Trade and other receivables          16,425,906             121,410 
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS          16,425,906        64,001,756 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.47%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Outstanding claims          69,089,956                      -   
Unearned premiums/subscriptions          20,786,720                      -   
Trade and other payables            7,252,954                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES          97,129,630                      -   

Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.0%

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities are:

2022 2021
$ $

3 months or less                        -          10,117,001 
3-12 months                        -          12,275,558 
1-5 years                        -          37,245,036 
Over 5 years                        -          32,713,141 

                       -          92,350,736 

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest resulting from recognised 
financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.  Cash flows for financial assets and liabilities without fixed amounts or timing are based on 
conditions existing at 30 June 2022.

2022

2021

Investments are considered level 2 financial assets in accordance with AASB 13 (Fair Value Measurement). The carrying amounts of financial 
assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate fair value. All maturity dates are within twelve months.
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Statement by the MAV Directors
for the year ended 30 June 2022

LGE HEALTH PLAN
STATEMENT BY MAV DIRECTORS
as at 30 June 2022

In the opinion of directors of The Municipal Association of Victoria:

(a)   

(b)    

(c)    

(d)    

Cr. David Clark Cr. Tom Melican Kerry Thompson
President Director Chief Executive Officer

Melbourne
7/10/2022

OTHER INFORMATION

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

REVENUE 

REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Administration allowance income           454,939          468,390 
Interest income             14,522            18,072 
TOTAL REVENUE           469,461          486,462 

EXPENSES
Hospital excesses refunded           132,003          140,412 
Administration overhead               8,278              8,273 
TOTAL EXPENSES           140,281          148,685 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR           329,180          337,777 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The MAV is an association incorporated by the Municipal Association Act 1907 .  The LGE Health Plan is a division of the MAV.

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income of the LGE Health Plan is drawn up so as to present fairly in all 
material respects the result of the Plan for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of the LGE Health Plan as at that date
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the LGE Health Plan will be able to pay its debts 
as and when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also are materially consistent with the International Financial Reporting Standards as 
disclosed in note A2.  

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements.

Signed in accordance with the resolution of directors of the Municipal Association of Victoria.

Legal form:

Domicile:
Melbourne, Australia

Address of registered office and principal place of business:
Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Victoria, Australia

Nature of the operation and principal activities:
The MAV represents, promotes and supports the interest of Victorian local governments and their communities.

1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of LGE Health Plan

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of LGE Health Plan (the “Plan”), which comprises the statement of financial 
position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, and the Statement by Directors. 

In our opinion the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Plan as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the ABC Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Plan are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Plan's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Plan or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This 
description forms part of our auditor's report. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS

KRISTIE DUNDON
Partner

Melbourne
17 October 2022
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LGE HEALTH PLAN
STATEMENT BY MAV DIRECTORS
as at 30 June 2022

In the opinion of directors of The Municipal Association of Victoria:

(a)   

(b)    

(c)    

(d)    

Cr. David Clark Cr. Tom Melican Kerry Thompson
President Director Chief Executive Officer

Melbourne
7/10/2022

OTHER INFORMATION

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

REVENUE 

REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Administration allowance income           454,939          468,390 
Interest income             14,522            18,072 
TOTAL REVENUE           469,461          486,462 

EXPENSES
Hospital excesses refunded           132,003          140,412 
Administration overhead               8,278              8,273 
TOTAL EXPENSES           140,281          148,685 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR           329,180          337,777 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The MAV is an association incorporated by the Municipal Association Act 1907 .  The LGE Health Plan is a division of the MAV.

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income of the LGE Health Plan is drawn up so as to present fairly in all 
material respects the result of the Plan for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of the LGE Health Plan as at that date
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the LGE Health Plan will be able to pay its debts 
as and when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also are materially consistent with the International Financial Reporting Standards as 
disclosed in note A2.  

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements.

Signed in accordance with the resolution of directors of the Municipal Association of Victoria.

Legal form:

Domicile:
Melbourne, Australia

Address of registered office and principal place of business:
Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Victoria, Australia

Nature of the operation and principal activities:
The MAV represents, promotes and supports the interest of Victorian local governments and their communities.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 30 June 2022
Statement of Financial Position
at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents D1,F2           623,546          379,513 
Term Deposits F1,F2           692,905                    -   
Trade and other receivables C1             52,988            44,190 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS        1,369,439          423,703 

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Term Deposits F1,F2        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL ASSETS        2,961,541       2,632,361 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

NET ASSETS        2,957,541       2,628,361 

EQUITY        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year        2,628,361       2,290,584 
Surplus from ordinary activities           329,180          337,777 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECEIPTS
Administration allowance B           446,736          465,333 
Interest received B             13,928            20,240 
PAYMENTS
Hospital excesses refunded         (132,004)         (140,412)
Administration overhead             (8,278)             (8,273)

D1(b)           320,382          336,888 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from redemption of investments (Application of investment funds)           (76,349)                    -   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           (76,349)                    -   

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD           244,033          336,888 
Cash at beginning of year           379,513            42,625 

CASH AT END OF YEAR D1(a)           623,546          379,513 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2
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LGE HEALTH PLAN
STATEMENT BY MAV DIRECTORS
as at 30 June 2022

In the opinion of directors of The Municipal Association of Victoria:

(a)   

(b)    

(c)    

(d)    

Cr. David Clark Cr. Tom Melican Kerry Thompson
President Director Chief Executive Officer

Melbourne
7/10/2022

OTHER INFORMATION

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

REVENUE 

REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Administration allowance income           454,939          468,390 
Interest income             14,522            18,072 
TOTAL REVENUE           469,461          486,462 

EXPENSES
Hospital excesses refunded           132,003          140,412 
Administration overhead               8,278              8,273 
TOTAL EXPENSES           140,281          148,685 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR           329,180          337,777 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The MAV is an association incorporated by the Municipal Association Act 1907 .  The LGE Health Plan is a division of the MAV.

the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive Income of the LGE Health Plan is drawn up so as to present fairly in all 
material respects the result of the Plan for the year ended 30 June 2022
the accompanying Statement of Financial Position is drawn up so as to present fairly in all material respects the state of 
affairs of the LGE Health Plan as at that date
at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the LGE Health Plan will be able to pay its debts 
as and when they fall due
the financial statements and notes also are materially consistent with the International Financial Reporting Standards as 
disclosed in note A2.  

The financial statements have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements.

Signed in accordance with the resolution of directors of the Municipal Association of Victoria.

Legal form:

Domicile:
Melbourne, Australia

Address of registered office and principal place of business:
Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne, 3000, Victoria, Australia

Nature of the operation and principal activities:
The MAV represents, promotes and supports the interest of Victorian local governments and their communities.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position
at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents D1,F2           623,546          379,513 
Term Deposits F1,F2           692,905                    -   
Trade and other receivables C1             52,988            44,190 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS        1,369,439          423,703 

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Term Deposits F1,F2        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL ASSETS        2,961,541       2,632,361 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

NET ASSETS        2,957,541       2,628,361 

EQUITY        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year        2,628,361       2,290,584 
Surplus from ordinary activities           329,180          337,777 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECEIPTS
Administration allowance B           446,736          465,333 
Interest received B             13,928            20,240 
PAYMENTS
Hospital excesses refunded         (132,004)         (140,412)
Administration overhead             (8,278)             (8,273)

D1(b)           320,382          336,888 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from redemption of investments (Application of investment funds)           (76,349)                    -   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           (76,349)                    -   

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD           244,033          336,888 
Cash at beginning of year           379,513            42,625 

CASH AT END OF YEAR D1(a)           623,546          379,513 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Statement of Financial Position
at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents D1,F2           623,546          379,513 
Term Deposits F1,F2           692,905                    -   
Trade and other receivables C1             52,988            44,190 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS        1,369,439          423,703 

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Term Deposits F1,F2        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS        1,592,102       2,208,658 

TOTAL ASSETS        2,961,541       2,632,361 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES               4,000              4,000 

NET ASSETS        2,957,541       2,628,361 

EQUITY        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ $

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year        2,628,361       2,290,584 
Surplus from ordinary activities           329,180          337,777 

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR        2,957,541       2,628,361 

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
NOTE $ $

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECEIPTS
Administration allowance B           446,736          465,333 
Interest received B             13,928            20,240 
PAYMENTS
Hospital excesses refunded         (132,004)         (140,412)
Administration overhead             (8,278)             (8,273)

D1(b)           320,382          336,888 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from redemption of investments (Application of investment funds)           (76,349)                    -   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           (76,349)                    -   

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD           244,033          336,888 
Cash at beginning of year           379,513            42,625 

CASH AT END OF YEAR D1(a)           623,546          379,513 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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LGE HEALTH PLAN
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE A:  CORPORATE INFORMATION
Structure:
A1  Corporate information A3 Statement of compliance
A2  Basis of preparation

A1.  Corporate information

A2.  Corporate information

A3.  Corporate information

NOTE B:  FUNDING THE DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES
Administration allowance income

Interest income

Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been drawn up in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial report are stated to assist in a general understanding of the financial 
report.  Accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise indicated.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.  The MAV, and therefore LGE Health Plan, is a Not for Profit entity.
The accounts have been prepared on the accruals basis using historical costs and, except where stated, do not take into account current 
valuations of assets.

Interest received is accounted for on an accrual basis.

An administration allowance is paid by GMHBA to the LGE Health Plan. The allowance is recognised on an accrual basis.

The LGE Health Plan was established by the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) in 2009.  The MAV has joined with GMHBA and 
Choosewell Pty Ltd to offer attractive health insurance plans to council staff at reduced cost.  The LGE Health Plan is owned and 
operated by the MAV and is not a provider of health insurance products.

Statement of compliance

The MAV is an Association incorporated by an Act of the Parliament of Victoria, Australia, known as the Municipal 
Association Act 1907.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the MAV are:

   interests, rights and privileges of municipal corporations
 - to promote the efficient carrying out of municipal government throughout the state of Victoria and watch over and protect the

 - to arrange contracts of insurance
 - to provide a public liability insurance scheme for local government

The financial report of LGE Health Plan for the year ended 30 June 2022 was authorised for issue in accordance with 
a resolution of the directors of the MAV on the date shown on the attached Statement by Directors.

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Interpretations, issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB).  

 - to arrange fidelity insurance for local government
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for the year ended 30 June 2022Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE C:  ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Structure
C1 Trade and other receivables C3 Fair value measurement
C2 Trade and other payables

C1

2022 2021
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES $ $

Administration allowance receivable 45,100           36,897           
Interest receivable 7,888             7,293             
TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 52,988           44,190           
Represented By:
Current             52,988 44,190           
Non-current                     -                      -   
TOTAL             52,988 44,190           

The ageing analysis of trade receivables are as follows:
Total < 30 days >30 days

2022
            52,988            45,100                     7,888 

2021
44,190            36,897                     7,293 

C2

C3

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the MAV determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. LGE Health Plan does not have any level 3 financial 
assets.
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate net fair value. For the purpose of fair value 
disclosures, the LGE Health Plan has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of 
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

LGE EMPLOYEE HEALTH PLAN

Fair value measurement                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:
 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant  to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant  to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short term nature they are not discounted. They represent 
liabilities for goods and services provided to the LGE Health Plan prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the 
LGE Health Plan becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are 
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Trade and other payables

LGE EMPLOYEE HEALTH PLAN

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for impairment.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating unit level. Individual debts that are known to be 
uncollectible are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognised when there is objective evidence that the LGE Health 
Plan will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 days overdue 
are considered objective evidence of impairment. 
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE D:  FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS
Structure
D1   Notes to statement of cash flows

2022 2021
$ $

Cash and cash equivalents           623,546          379,513 

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS           623,546          379,513 

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Used In Operating Activities
to Comprehensive Income
Profit for year           329,180          337,777 
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable             (8,798)                (889)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable                     -                      -   
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           320,382          336,888 

NOTE E:  PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS
Structure
E1 Related Parties E3 Auditor Fees
E2 Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

E1. RELATED PARTIES

E2. REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Loans to Directors

Other Transactions

E3. Audit Fees 2022 2021
Amounts payable or due and payable for audit services: $ $
Audit services               8,278              8,273 

              8,278              8,273 

The LGE Health Plan has a strict policy of not providing loans to Directors.  No loans were made to or are payable by Directors during the 
year.

The MAV is a body corporate established under the Municipal Association Act 1907 to provide services for and represent local 
government authorities in Victoria.  The MAV and its wholly owned controlled entities trade with its members in the normal course of 
business and on an arm’s length basis. There were no related party transactions during the year.

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents at balance date as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows are held in NAB 
cash deposits and reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

There were no other material transactions with Directors.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

in fixed interest funds net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes deposits held at call with banks and investments in cash

No remuneration was paid to Key Management Personnel by the LGE Health Plan during the year, who are remunerated separately by 
the MAV (related party).
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE F:  MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES
Structure
F1:  Interest rate risk
F2:  Liquidity risk 

F1. INTEREST RATE RISK

Non- 
Interest
Earning

Fixed
Interest

Rate

Floating
Interest

Rate
2022 2022 2022

$ $ $
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                                     -                       -            623,546 
Term Deposits                                     -          2,285,007                    -   
Trade and other receivables                              52,988                     -                      -   

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS                              52,988        2,285,007          623,546 
Weighted Average Interest Rate 2.4% 1.4%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables                                4,000                     -                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES                                4,000                     -                      -   
Weighted Average Interest Rate 0%

Non- 
Interest
Earning

Fixed
Interest

Rate

Floating
Interest

Rate
2021 2021 2021

 $  $  $ 
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                                     -                       -            379,513 
Term Deposits                                     -          2,208,658                    -   
Trade and other receivables                              36,897                     -                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS                              36,897        2,208,658          379,513 
Weighted average interest rate 0.5% 0.1%

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables                                4,000                     -                      -   
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES                                4,000                     -                      -   
Weighted average interest rate 0%

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities are:
2022 2021

NOTE $ $
3 months or less               4,000              4,000 
3-12 months                     -                      -   
1-5 years                     -                      -   
Over 5 years                     -                      -   

              4,000              4,000 

The LGE Health Plan's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective average interest rate for the classes of financial 
assets is set out below:

Cash and cash equivalents are considered level 1 financial assets in accordance with AASB 9 (Financial Instruments). The carrying 
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities represent their approximate net fair value. 

F3: Contingent Liabilities
F4: Equity

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest 
resulting from recognised financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022. Cash flows for financial assets and 
liabilities without fixed amount or timing are based on conditions existing at 30 June 2022.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2022

F2. LIQUIDITY RISK
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectation.

Year ended 30 June 2022 <3 months >3 months Total
$ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                            623,546                     -            623,546 
Term Deposits                            692,905        1,592,102       2,285,007 
Trade and other receivables                              46,412               6,576            52,988 

                        1,362,863        1,598,678       2,961,541 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables                                4,000                     -                4,000 
Other liabilities                                     -                       -                      -   
Total Financial Liabilities                                4,000                     -                4,000 

NET MATURITY                         1,358,863        1,598,678       2,957,541 

Year ended 30 June 2021 <3 months >3 months Total
$ $ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents                            379,513                     -            379,513 
Term Deposits                                     -          2,208,658       2,208,658 
Trade and other receivables                              40,263               3,927            44,190 

                           419,776        2,212,585       2,632,361 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables                                4,000                     -                4,000 
Other liabilities                                     -                       -                      -   
Total Financial Liabilities                                4,000                     -                4,000 
NET MATURITY                            415,776        2,212,585       2,628,361 

F4. EQUITY

There are no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2022 nor were there at 30 June 2021.

LGE EMPLOYEE HEALTH FUND

The risk implied from the values in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows. These liabilities originate from 
financial assets used in the ongoing operations of the business.  These assets are considered in the MAV’s overall liquidity risk.  To 
monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the MAV has established a 
comprehensive risk reporting covering its business that reflects the management of expected settlement of financial assets and liabilities.

F3. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

If the LGE Health Plan agreement was not to continue, an administrative levy of $125 per Employee Member (excl. GST) will be paid 
from the LGE Health Plan to fund costs associated with putting in place alternative arrangements for Employee Members. The remaining 
balance of the LGE Health Plan will be returned to Participant Organisations as outlined in the agreement.
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G:  OTHER MATTERS
Structure

G4 Events Subsequent
G5 Number of Employees

G3 Comparative figures

Reference Application 
Date for MAV

Impact

1 Jan 22

G2.

G3. Comparative figures

G4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Average number of equivalent full time employees during the year is 0 EFT (2021=0)

G1 Summary of significant accounting policies

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.

There were no material events subsequent to the year end that require reporting.

The MAV is a State and Territory Body (STB) and is exempt from income tax, in accordance with Division 1AB of Part III of the Income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997 and therefore LGE Health Plan is exempt from income tax.

G5  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:

Application of this standard is not 
expected to have a material 
impact.

Amendments to AAS 
Classification of 
Liabilites as Current or 
Non-Current

1 Jan 22

G1. Summary of significant accounting policies

AASB 2020-1

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective.

Income tax

Title Summary Application Date of Standard

G2 Income tax
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